ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE

SENATE HEALTH AND SOCI AL SERVI CES STANDI NG COW TTEE

February 16, 2011
1:31 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Bettye Davis, Chair
Senat or Denni s Egan

Senator Johnny Ellis
Senat or Kevin Meyer

Senat or Fred Dyson

MEMBERS ABSENT

Al'l nmenbers present

COW TTEE CALENDAR

PRESENTATI ON BY ALASKA CHI LDREN S ALLI ANCE
- HEARD

PREVI QUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON

No previous action to record

W TNESS REG STER

PAM KARALUNAS, Chapter Coordi nator

Al aska Children's Alliance

Anchor age, AK

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented report for
Al li ance.

CORY BRYANT, Program Manager

Al aska CARES

Anchor age, AK

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented report for
Al li ance.

ELENA ALUSKAK, Program Manager

The Children's Center

Bet hel , AK

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented report for
Al l i ance.

SENATE HSS COW TTEE -1-

Al aska Children's

Al aska Children's

Al aska Children's

February 16, 2011



ACTI ON NARRATI VE

1:31:28 PM

CHAIR BETTYE DAVIS called the Senate Health and Social Services
Standing Committee neeting to order at 1:31 p.m Present at the
call to order were Senators Egan, Ellis, and Chair Davis.

Al aska Children's Alliance

CHAIR DAVI S announced the first order of business would be a
report by the Alaska Children's Alliance.

PAM KARALUNAS, Chapter Coordinator, Alaska Children's Alliance
(ACA), explained they would give an update on Child Advocacy
Centers (CACs) in Alaska. She introduced the other presenters
and explained that the Al aska Children's Alliance is a state
chapter of the national organization, and its job is to provide
information, training, and support to child advocacy centers
around the state, and to conmunities wanting to develop child
advocacy centers. She said they are part of a nationa
organi zation that sets standards and does accreditation. There
are currently three accredited centers in Al aska.

M5. KARALUNAS explained her job 1is to provide technica

assi stance and support, state representation on a regional |evel

with the western region, as well as on a national |evel. She
said they also receive sone very limted funds through the ACA
whi ch they distribute to the CAGCs.

She stated they provide funding and support for a nunber of
statewi de projects, including the TeleCam Medical Peer Review
and Consultation, which is based at CARES; a biennial state-w de
child maltreatment conference; forensic photography equipnment
and nedical treatnment for each CAC, and coordination of nedica

equi pnrent and data collection. They are working on devel oping
sonme Al aska-specific projects, which include a pilot project in
the Copper River Basin, specialized support and training for
nat ur al support people in the surrounding villages and
communities, and training for tribal entities on how to use
CACs; and training on devel oping satellite CAGCs.

CHAIR DAVIS asked how many centers total exist throughout the
state.

MS. KARALUNAS responded there are nine, and one being devel oped
i n Kodi ak.

SENATE HSS COW TTEE - 2- February 16, 2011



1:38:27 PM
SENATOR DYSON j oi ned the neeti ng.

SENATOR DYSON asked if the presenters had expl ained the m ssion
of the child advocacy centers.

M5. KARALUNAS answered that they save the good stuff for |ast.

CORY BRYANT, Program Manager, Al aska CARES, Anchorage, expl ai ned
that the Anchorage center serves the Anchorage area and any
other areas that |ack access to a CAC. For instance, sone
villages outside of Dillingham have to fly to Anchorage before
they can go to Dillingham so they are seen at Al aska CARES
They see on average 850-900 children per year. Their facility is
co-located with their team partners, such as the Crimes Against
Children unit of the Anchorage Police Departnent and the Ofice
of Children's Services. They also have an Al aska Native unit
housed in their building. This nakes it easier for famlies to
conme to one place. CARES is a program of the Children's Hospital
at Providence, and is located on the Al aska Native Mdical
Cent er canpus.

ELENA ALUSKAK, Program Manager, The Children's Center, Bethel
said the center, also known by the Yupik nanme of "lrnianta
| kayurviat” is under the Tundra Wmnen's Coalition. This CAC has
recently noved into a brand new facility. The average nunber of
children served per year is 140 -145, and 80 percent are Yupik
speakers. Al of their staff is bilingual, English and Yupik
speaki ng.

SENATOR DYSON asked, of the 145 clients served per year, how
many cases result in indictnents.

M5. ALUSKAK responded maybe ten.

MR. KARALUNAS said the newest CAC is in the Copper River Basin,
and they provide forensic interviews on site.

M5. ALUSKAK said the CAC in D llingham also known as "Nitaput”
(We hear them), serves 32 conmunities, and has served about 222
children since they opened in 2003.

M5. BRYANT explained the Fairbanks CAC was started by M.
Karalunas. It is co-located with the State Troopers, and serves
about 83 communities. They have served about 1,000 children
si nce 2003.

SENATE HSS COW TTEE - 3- February 16, 2011



M5. ALUSKAK said the Juneau CAC is a program of Catholic
Community Services, is accredited by the National Children's
Al'liance, and serves 19 conmunities in southeast Al aska.

M5. BRYSON expl ained the Kenai Peninsula CAC is in the process
of developing satellite CACs in Kenai, Honer, and Seward. They
have been open since 2008 and have served over 200 children
since then.

1:42: 00 PM
M5. ALUSKAK said that Kodiak has a developing CAC, and the
surmer of 2011 is the projected opening tine.

CHAI R DAVI S asked how much fundi ng the Kodi ak CAC i s receiving.

M5. KARALUNAS said the governor's budget for next year includes
about $250, 000 for start-up costs.

M5. BRYANT said the Mat-Su Valley CAC was established in 1999,
and has recently expanded so that the troopers' AVI unit is in
their facility as well.

M5. ALUSKAK explained that the None CAC is a program of Kawerak
Native Association. Annaktuq is their shelter nane, and they
have served since 319 children since opening.

M5. KARALUNAS enphasized that CACs provide a child and famly
friendly environnent for coordination of the investigative
process in child abuse cases, specifically child sexual abuse.

M5. BRYSON said the first concern is to have a child and famly
friendly environment. They try to make children as confortable
as they can which sonetinmes involves feeding and clothing them
they do whatever it takes to neet the needs of the child and
famly.

M5. ALUSKAK expl ained that each CAC has a person who is trained
in doing forensic interviews with child victinms, who is focused
on nmeking the child feel <confortable. The caregiver is also
awar e of everything the interviewer is doing.

M5. KARALUNAS expl ained that in the past, when an allegation of
child sexual abuse was received, OCS would take the child out of
class, interview the child, and take the child out of school to
be interviewed at the police station, then to the energency
room This process takes away all that. There is one interview,
which is video recorded, and can be used in court. Al the

SENATE HSS COW TTEE -4- February 16, 2011



adults come together in one place, instead of nmaking the child
come to them The multidisciplinary response and investigation
reduces duplicative interviews.

1:48: 38 PM

M5. ALUSKAK said that specialized, non-traumatic nedical exans
can be done at the CACs. If |law enforcenent knows there will be
a nedical exam a nedical person wll be involved in the
i nterview.

CHAI R DAVI S asked whi ch centers have nedi cal exam roons.

M5. KARALUNAS said nost of the centers have exam roons on-site
but m ght not have their own staff. Providers will conme to the
center if there is not staff on-site. Mst of them have on-site
exam capability. This is not a traumatic exam It is non-
invasive and kids often say that it was their favorite part of
t he process, because a nedi cal exam can be reassuring. It is not
done if the child refuses, wunless there is sone imed ate
medi cal reason

M5. BRYANT said that because nost children don't tell about
abuse right away, there is usually not physical evidence present
on the child.

M5. ALUSKAK said CACs also provide on-going famly support.
There are famly advocates on staff to be with the famly during
the initial interview, and they will continue providing support
for a year. The advocate also makes referrals to others as
needed. She explained that in Bethel many famlies are Yupik,
and having a Yupi k speaki ng advocat e hel ps them

M5. BRYANT enphasized that cultural conpetency is a standard the
CACs have to neet.

M5. ALUSKAK said the CACs also provide consultation with nental
health services. Cients prefer a relationship where trust has
already been built. Mny clients will prefer natural support
people instead of nental health professionals. There is training
avai l abl e for these natural support people.

MS. BRYANT said the Anchorage CAC has two part-tinme therapists
on staff to provide trauma-specific training for children and
famlies, specifically for those famlies that have no
i nsurance. She noted there are very few resources for children
who don't have insurance.

SENATE HSS COW TTEE - 5- February 16, 2011



M5. BRYANT al so explained the case review process is different
at every CAC. In Anchorage, they do case review once a nonth and
t hey have specific criteria for disclosure or evidence of abuse.
Mul ti-disciplinary teamreviewis the heart of CAC

M5. ALUSKAK explained that all CACs use the NCATrak case
tracking system This is a national system where basic
information is entered, and it is useful for evaluation. The
system hel ps pul | out nunbers, case i nformation and
investigation outconmes. Villages seeing these nunbers can
realize that abuse is everywhere, not just in their village.

1:57: 23 PM

M5. KARALUNAS added that it is difficult to track nunbers in
Al aska; OCS tracks their cases, but those are only cases where
the abuser is within the famly or the famly is not protective.
The State Troopers track other types of cases. The CACs get
referrals fromboth entities, so they can track all cases.

MS. BRYANT said that CACs in each community provide education
outreach, presentations, and do whatever they can to get the
word out .

1:58: 20 PM
M5. KARALUNAS explained that <child sexual abuse is clearly
linked wth increased risks for many problens, including

al coholism suicide, violent behavior, depression, drug abuse,
fetal death, and even heart disease and diabetes. The annual
cost of child abuse in Alaska is averaged at over $500 million
per year. The CAC nodel also has a cost benefit, because cases
nove nore quickly.

1:59: 38 PM
SENATOR MEYER j oi ned the neeti ng.

SENATOR DYSON noted he has friends who work with the prostitutes
at Hiland Mountain. Virtually all of them have been abused as
children. Most perpetrators were also abused. Breaking that
cycle is hugely inportant. It used to be that about one-third of
t hose nol ested were nal es.

M5. BRYANT said that about 35 percent of the children they see
are mal es.

M5. ALUSKAK said the percentage is a little bit |ower in Bethel,
probably because it is harder for males to disclose.

SENATE HSS COW TTEE - 6- February 16, 2011



M5. BRYANT added that the CAC nodel exists to stop the cycle, by
provi ding caring intervention and treatnment.

MS. KARALUNAS noted there are nobre reasons for the CAC nodel
VWhen kids are seen at CACs there is faster resolution, faster
char gi ng deci sions, and nore cases prosecuted.

2:03:08 PM
She also said the research suggests that one in four girls and
one in seven boys wll be the victim of sone type of sexual

abuse or assault before age 18. Mst shocking to many people is
the age of the children; 41 percent of those children are one to
six years of age, and 36 percent are between the ages of seven
and twel ve.

M5. KARALUNAS then explained a chart of the nunbers of children
served at CACs in Alaska, as well as the nunber of comunities
served. She said that no CACs rely solely on state funding for
their existence, but that state funding is essential for
sustainability and to l|everage other funding. The need is
increasing, as the nunber of CACs and children and famlies
served increases. There is no increase in their budget, but the
need is increasing. Caseloads are going up; they need satellite
centers; Nonme needs a nurse exam ner; Copper R ver needs an
additional full time staff position; Anchorage needs partial
funding for a part time nedical director; Fairbanks needs an
increase in contract nedical services; Kenai needs support for a
satellite CAC in Seward.

2:06: 53 PM
M5. KARALUNAS also stressed that all staff are on call seven
days a week, which results in the need for additional funding.

2:07:38 PM
CHAI R DAVI S asked what the total anobunt of their budget for the
com ng year is, and what the funding sources are.

M5. KARALUNAS said funding was originally through a federal
earmark, and the state started funding the programin FY 10. The
amount in the budget has been $3.2 mllion. She thought it was
t he sane anobunt in the governor's proposed budget this year.
CHAI R DAVI S asked if the funding was done under CCS.

M5. KARALUNAS responded that it was.

SENATE HSS COW TTEE -7- February 16, 2011



SENATOR DYSON asked how nmany probable crimes occurred out of 100
report ed.

M5. KARALUNAS said about half of those children will disclose
some type of abuse, and about 25 percent of those cases wl
have sone type of prosecution

SENATOR DYSON said, "So out of 100 kids, only 50 percent
di scl ose. "

M5. BRYANT said that the other 50 percent either can't talk
about the abuse or nothing has happened.

SENATOR DYSON asked if about half result in sone type of
prosecuti on.

M5. BRYANT said nost children's cases don't go to trial
prosecutors don't want to put children in the position of having
to testify, so they plead down.

SENATOR DYSON asked if the testinmony produced at the CACs is
sufficient.

M5. BRYANT responded that the law requires the child to be
available to testify before the DVD can be used in court. |If
they don’'t renenber, you can play the video, but they have to be
avai | abl e.

SENATOR DYSON asked if it is true that once the probability of a
crinme is established, children don't have to press charges.

M5. BRYANT said the state will press charges but the victim and
famly have to cooperate.

SENATOR DYSON asked if anything can be done to raise the rate of
convi cti ons.

M5. BRYANT said one problemis not enough prosecutors. Also, the
court system is backed up with cases. Adult cases are nore apt
to go to trial

2:13:33 PM

M5. KARALUNAS said that nore training is needed for prosecutors
who handl e these types of cases. Child sexual abuse cases are
uni que, and require specialized training. Al so, prosecutors are
overwhel ned, and they don't have tinme to deal with these cases.

SENATE HSS COW TTEE - 8- February 16, 2011



M5. ALUSKAK said that m sunderstanding of traditional cultural
| anguage and lifestyle makes it difficult for prosecutions to
happen, or even investigations.

M5. BRYANT said even judges need education in this area. There
is a lot of msperception. Recently a judge said there was no
rel ati onship between people who view child pornography and
whet her they will harm a child. Research shows there is such a
rel ati onship.

SENATOR DYSON noted that many abused children are not forced

they are seduced. The perpetrator has used child pornography as
an inducenent. He then asked how rmuch support there is fromthe
community | eadership in Bethel

M5. ALUSKAK said it is a difficult question, but they do get
sone support.

SENATOR DYSON said many nolesters present thenselves as healthy
and successful people, so allegations of child abuse can be
surprising; people assune they nust be fal se accusati ons.

SENATOR EGAN asked if the CAC is running any cases through the
t herapeutic courts in Anchorage.

M5. KARALUNAS responded the therapeutic courts are not set up to
handl e child sexual abuse cases.

2:18: 01 PM

CHAI R DAVI S thanked the presenters. She said she knows the need
for CACs is real. She said the CACs are successful even if cases
are not prosecuted. Children can still be saved and made whol e.

2:19: 21 PM

There being no further business to conme before the commttee
Chair Davis adjourned the nmeeting at 2:40 p. m

SENATE HSS COW TTEE - 9- February 16, 2011



